~prer=eaagy... REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NO. 10:50 A.M.
COUNCIL MEETING 10/28/10

October 28, 2010

Y, / APFROVED BY
FROM:  JERRY D. BISHOP, Assistant Directo&Ez— S

THROUGH: KEVIN FABINO, Planning Managérf%w CITY MANAGER
|

Secretary, Historic Preservation Com ion

BY: KARANA HATTERSLEY-DRAYTON 4. A
Historic Preservation Project Manager

SUBJECT:. CONSIDER DESIGNATION OF THE GEORGE AND ADELPHIA ROWELL HOME
LOCATED AT 153 N. EFFIE STREET (COUNCIL DISTRICT 3) AND THE UNITED
GROCERS INC. WAREHOUSE AND DISTRIBUTION CENTER LOCATED AT 801 R
STREET (COUNCIL DISTRICT 3) TO THE LLOCAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC
RESOURCES.

RECOMMENDATION

The Historic Preservation Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the attached Resolutions
placing the George and Adelphia Rowell Home and the United Grocers inc. Warehouse and Distribution
Center (aka Western Building Materials Company) on the Local Register of Historic Resources.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The owners of George and Adelphia Rowell Home and the United Grocers Inc. Warehouse and
Distribution Center have requested that their property be considered for inclusion in Fresno's Local
Official Register of Historic Resources. The properties were all evaluated with respect to the historic
resource criteria of the City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance, Fresno Municipal Code (FMC), Article 16
of Chapter 12 (excerpts attached) and were publicly noticed in the Fresng Bee as required by the
Ordinance. The City of Fresno's Historic Preservation Commission held a noticed public hearing on
October 4, 2010 regarding nominations of the properties. The Commission concluded that the George
and Adelphia Rowell Home and the United Grocers [nc. Warehouse and Distribution Center are eligible
to the Register. The Historic Preservation Commission hereby forwards these nominations to the City
Council for consideration.

BACKGROUND

The George and Adelphia Rowell Home located at 153 N. Effie Street in the Jefferson Neighborhood
was built in 1903 for George B. Rowell and Adelphia [Warlow} Rowell. Rowell was a member of a local
pioneer family and brother to the well-known civic leader and publicist Dr. Chester Rowell. The American
Foursquare style home was designed by one of Fresno’s leading architects during this era, Alexander
Culbertson Swartz. Swartz moved to Fresno around 1890 and opened an office as an architect. His first
recorded project was the Kutner-Goldstein Block (1891) which has since been demolished. This 1903
residence is the oldest home of three designed by Swartz which are still extant in Fresno. The 2-story
building is articulated in a variety of ornamental details with Queen Anne style leaded glass windows,
Craftsman porch and pergola and a bracketed cornice. The interior is also notable and includes an
Eastlake inspired staircase. The home has been preserved over its 107 year history with remarkable
integrity and is currently being completely renovated under the Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP)
by the current property owner, the Fresno Housing Authorities of the City and County of Fresno.
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The George and Adelphia Rowell Home was included in the City-sponsored Ratkovich Plan Survey of
1994 and was found to be eligible to the Local Register of Historic Resources. inthe summer of 2010 the
property was evaluated for the National Register of Historic Places as required under Section 106 of the
National Historic Preservation Act. Staff found that the Rowell Home was eligible 1o the National Register
of Historic Places; in a letter dated August 5, 2010 the State Historic Preservation Officer concurred
(Exhibit E}. The George and Adelphia Rowell Home appears {o be individually eligible to Fresno’s Local
Register of Historic Resources under Criterion i, as an example of early architecture in what is now the
Jefferson neighborhood; under Criterion i, for its association with an important pioneer family; and under
Criterion iii as an excellent example of the residential work of A.C. Swartz and as a particularly fine
example of a type of architecture, the American Foursguare.

The United Grocers Inc. Warehouse and Distribution Center (aka Western Building Materials
Company) was constructed in 1931 for the San Joaquin Valley branch of a San Francisco-based
cooperative. The two-story masonry warehouse is one of several that was constructed along the Santa Fe
rail corridor in the early 20" century. The United Grocers warehouse was designed by the local
architectural firm of Swartz and Ryland, perhaps best known for its design of the Fresno State (now Fresno
City) College Library in 1933. The warehouse was evaluated in 1994 in the Ratkovich Plan survey and
was found to be eligible to the Local Register of Historic Resources. The consultant noted that “the
buildings is lacking in ornamental detail altogether” but concluded that it was important architecturally as
an excellent example of the “Industrial Brick style” in the context of a potential multi-building warehouse
district.

The warehouse has been vacant since 1986 but was purchased in 2009 by a local development firm,
Baltara Enterprises LP. The building is in the process of adaptive reuse for office space as part of a
contractual agreement with a federal client, the General Services Administration. Due 1o federal
requirements for blast resistance under Tier |, the existing steel frame industrial windows have been
replaced and some windows and doors have been in-filled, although some of these were not original to the
1931 design. A small one-story addition to the north end is under construction and is stepped back from
the fagade, in order to allow the older building to dominate. Staff and the Commission concluded that even
with some tenant improvements, the major character defining features of the building have been retained
-~ the stepped parapets on the north and south elevations, the overall massing, the masonry construction
and the clerestory and bowstring truss roof. The former United Grocers Warehouse thus appears to retain
sufficient integrity to its period of construction, 1931, and appears eligible to the Local Register of Historic
Resources under criterion i, for its association with early 20" century commerce along the Santa Fe rail
corridor and under criterion iii, as an excellent example of a type of functional vernacular building
{(warehouse) that was also designed by a major architectural firm, Swartz and Rytand.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Fresno.
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Attachments: Exhibit A - Designation Criteria for the Local Register of Historic Resources.
Exhibit B - Updated State of California Primary and BSO Forms for the George and

Exhibit C -
Exhibit D -

Exhibit D -

Exhibit E-

Exhibit E -
Exhibit F -

Adelphia Rowell Home Located at N. Effie Street, Fresno.

Aerial Photograph (2008} of Rowell Home, 153 N. Effie Street

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fresno, California,
Designating the George and Adelphia Rowell Home to the Local Register of
Historic Resources.

Letter of Concurrence for Determination of Eligibility to the National
Register of Historic Places from Milford Wayne Donaldson, FAIA (SHPO)

5 August 2010,

Updated State of California Primary and BSO Forms for the United Grocers
Inc. Warehouse and Distribution Center Located at 801 R Street, Fresno.
Aerial Photograph {2008) of United Grocers, 801 R Street.

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Fresno, California,
Designating the United Grocers Inc. Warehouse and Distribution

Center to the Local Register of Historic Resources.
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State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial
NRHP Status Code
Other Listings
Review Code Reviewer Date

P1. Resource Name(s) or Number: George and Adelphia Rowell Home (Updated forms, see 1994 as attached)
*P2. Location: *a. County: Fresno
*h. USGS 7.5' Quad: Fresno South, 1963, photorevised 1981; parcel located in Section 3, R20E T14S

c. Address: 153 North Effie Street, Fresno

d. Assessor’s Parcel Number: 459-332-06T
*P3a. Description: This two-story American Foursquare home faces east onto N. Effie Street and was previously
evaluated in 1994 by architectural historian John Edward Powell as part of the City of Fresno’s Ratkovich Plan survey
(as attached). The description prepared in 1994 is accurate with one exception: the tripartite window on the fagade
consists of a large 16 light fixed window flanked by 1/1 double hung sash windows. It would appear from the black and
white photo on the 1994 forms that the window treatment is the same and that this is not a recent addition. Of
additional interest is a rather striking bay window on the west elevation that lights the staircase (a window seat is
located on the interior). The three narrow double hung sash windows are articulated with similar “triangulated-head
transom motifs” as described by Powell for the fagade windows.

The remarkable Eastlake style interior staircase as described in the Powell survey is extant. The entry into the home
includes a small parlor or receiving room which has a built-in hutch on the west elevation under a leaded glass window
(see photos on continuation sheet); this room is set off and separated from the entrance to the formal parlor by
decorative lonic columns on pedestals. Pocket doors of multi-paned glass provide some additional separation from the
entry into the formal parlor. A wood paneled “library” is located on the northwest corner of the first floor of the home
and includes a series of multi-paned casement windows and a built in hutch.

The barn/garage mentioned in the 1994 forms has been demolished. There are currently no outbuildings on the parcel

and the only real vegetation is the wisteria on the porte cochere.

*P3b. Resource Attributes: HP2 (Single-family home, currently vacant)

“P4. Resources Present: eBuilding
- P5b Photo date: July 21, 2010

*P6. Date Constructed/Age
and Sources: 1903, Chicago
Title Company; 1906 Sanborn
Fire Insurance Map

*P7. Owner and Address:
Fresno Housing Authorities of
- . the City and County of Fresno
< 1331 Fulton Mall

Fresno, CA 93721

*P8. Recorded by:

Karana Hattersley-Drayton, M.A.
Historic Preservation Project
Manager, Planning and
Development Department

2600 Fresno Street

Fresno, CA 93721

" *P9. Date Recorded: 7.21.10
*P10. Survey Type: Intensive

*P11. Report Citation: “NSP Review for the Housing Authorities, George and Adelphia Rowell Home”
*Attachments: e 1994 Historic Resources Inventory Forms @ Continuation Sheet

DPR 523A (1/95) *Required information



State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial

Page 2 of 7 Resource: George and Adelphia Rowell Home

*Recorded by: Karana Hattersley-Drayton

*Date: 7/22/10

m Continuation mUpdate

Photos top left,
clockwise: 1)
window on west
elevation; 2) bay
window at head of
staircase; 3) entry
way, main door to
left of photo; 4)
fireplace in front
room; 5) “library”;
6) spidlework on
staircase

DPR 523L (1/95)

*Required information




State of California — The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#

CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial

Page 3 of 7 Resource: George and Adelphia Rowell Home

“Recorded by: Karana Hattersley-Drayton *Date: July 22, 2010 m Continuation uUpdate

Updated Historic Context:

It 1870 the Central Pacific Railroad began its diagonal push down the San Joaquin Valley. New towns
were surveyed along the corridor---several were planned by the railroad itself---and earlier villages situated
away from the tracks often vanished overnight. In 1872 the railroad reached what is now Fresno. The
Contract and Finance Company, a subsidiary of the Central Pacific Railroad, bought 4,480 acres in a
desolate area where Dry Creek drained into the plains. Surveyor Edward H. Mix laid out the new town in
blocks 320 feet by 400 feet, with 20 foot alleys, lots 25 x 150 feet fronting on 80-foot wide streets parallel to
and on both sides of the tracks (Clough 1984:121). The gridiron pian was filed in 1873 and was
remarkably rigid, broken only by the space reserved for a future courthouse and the broad swaths through
the center of town for the tracks, depot and yards (Reps 1979:187).

The raisin industry developed in the 1870s, after the scorching heat of 1875 dried grapes on the vine
(Hoover: 91). The Sun-Maid Raisin Cooperative was founded in 1913 and became one of the most
successful in America (1bid..89, 91). Fresno became the principal-packing center for the raisin grape
industry with fourteen packinghouses in the city. Other crops, such as cotton and figs, helped to diversify
the tocal economy and Fresno became the market town for a large portion of the San Joaquin Valley (Reps
1979:192). It is now a city of 500,000 and the center of the richest agricultural county in the United States
(Haslam1993:194).

Beginning in the 1880s subdivisions were added north of Fresno’s original railroad town. Although the
"parent grid" of the city was parallel to the Central Pacific tracks, these new subdivisions were surveyed to
be parallel to the surrounding agricultural sections and laid out with streets oriented north-south and east-
west. One early subdivision was the Villa Addition {1884} surveyed by Ingvart Teilman, who served as the
city engineer for Fresno. The 1888 Plat of Fresno indicates that the five-block tract encompassed city
blocks 594, 599, 604, 603 and 598 with North Blackstone Avenue on the west, East McKenzie on the
north, N. Effie the boundary on the east for block 598 and N. Diana on the east for city block 594, with
Silvia (or today's Divisadero) the southern boundary. The 1898 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map depicts
considerable residential infill in the Villa Tract, particularly on the parcels closest to Silvia.

The George and Adelphia Rowell Home, Lot 27-28, Block 4 Villa Tract (City Biock 599)

In 1903 a stately American Colonial Revival Foursquare style home was built for George and Adelphia
Rowell on lots 27-28 at what is now addressed as 153 North Effie Street. According to prior research by
John Edward Powell (1994 as attached) the plans were prepared by Alexander Culberston Swartz who was
trained as a civil engineer at the University of Hlinois. Swartz moved to Fresno around 1890 and opened
an office as an architect. His first recorded project was the Kutner-Goldstein Block (1891) which has since
been demolished. By the early 1900s Swartz had a thriving practice and was one of the leading architects
in the area. Commissions included schools, commercial buildings and at least one library as well as
residential buildings. Only three Swartz designed homes are extant in Fresno: the Rowell Home, the
Proffitt Home(1911) and the Thomas Risley Residence (1917). The Late Queen Anne style Proffiit Home
was relocated during the construction of State Route 180 and is now a fraternity for Fresno State
University. The Risley Home is a shingled Arts and Crafts style residence and is located in Fresno’s Tower
District. The Rowell Home, with its mix of Classic Revival and Queen Anne influences on an American
Foursquare (or Classic Box} represents an earlier phase of the architect’s work.

The 1906 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map depicts a two story box with a one story room on the back which
served and continues to serve as the kitchen for the home. In 1910 a barn was constructed on the parcel

DPR 3231 (1/95) "Required information




State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI#
CONTINUATION SHEET Trinomial
Page 4 of 7 Resource: George and Adelphia Rowell Home
*Recorded by: Karana Hattersley-Drayton *Date: July 22, 2010 m Continuation

B10 Continued:

and in 1916 a permit was issued for a sleeping porch. The 1919 Sanborn shows not only that the one
story kitchen now has a second story (the sleeping porch) but that an additional one story room has been
added to the northwest corner of the home, apparently without permit. This room has been referred to as
the library and is wood paneled with multi-light casement windows on the north elevation and a heavy built
in hutch in what is a pop-out or bay on the rear elevation of the home. This room more closely reflects the
aesthetics of the arts and crafts movement (see window detail below).

The home’s entry way (receiving parlor), staircase with Eastlake inspired spindle work, front parlor with
fireplace and multi-paned pocket doors are all extant from 1903. The only modern intrusions in the home
are the upgraded bathrooms and new cabinets in the kitchen. Likewise, the exterior of the home maintains
integrity to its 1903 period of significance.

George and Adelphia Rowell

The original owners of the home, George and Adelphia Rowell have been previously described in the
1994 survey forms. In brief “Rowell” is an important and recognized name in the early settiement of
Fresno. George Rowell was a sheep rancher, vineyardist and merchant and with his wife, the former
Adelphia Warlow, was a prominent member of the area’s cultural and literary elite. Mrs. Rowell lived in the
home until her death in 1932. The house was thereafter the residence of their daughter, Bernice [Rowell]
Dahlgren and her husband, Arthur Dahlgren, who was a rancher by profession. The property is thus
associated with an early important family in Fresno County history (the Rowells) (Criterion B); it is the
earliest surviving residence of a well-known local architect, A.C. Swartz (Criterion C) and is an excellent
example of its style or type, the American Foursquare (Criterion C). The 107 year old home maintains
integrity of location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and association. The George and
Adelphia Rowell Home appears eligible to the National Register of Historic Places at the Local level of
significance, and is eligible for consideration for Fresno’s Local Register of Historic Resources.

Additional References:

Clough,Charles W. and William B. Secrest Jr. Fresno County-The Pioneer Years: From the Beginnings to 1900, 1984.
Haslam,Gerald, in The Great Central Valley: California’s Heartland, 1993.

Hoover, Mildred Brook et al; Historic Spots in California, 4" edition, 1990.

Powell, John Edward, "A.C. Swartz,” 1996, in A Guide to Historic Architecture in Fresno,” www.historicfresno.org.

Reps,John W. Cities of the American West: A History of Frontier Urban Planning, 1979.
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, Fresno, 1898, 1906, 1919, 1948.
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Aerial Photograph (2008)

153 North Effie Street (George and Adelphia Rowell Home)
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FRESNOQO,
CALIFORNIA, DESIGNATING THE GEORGE AND ADELPHIA ROWELL
HOME LOCATED AT 153 NORTH EFFIE STREET, AS A HISTORIC
RESOURCE TO THE LOCAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC RESOURCES

WHEREAS, the George and Adelphia Rowell Home was built in 1903 in the Villa Tract in
what is now the Jefferson Neighborhood; and

WHEREAS, the 2-story home was designed by Fresno architect Alexander Culbertson
Swartz who moved to Fresno around 1890 and by 1900 was one of the city’s leading architects;
and

WHEREAS, the home is a particularly fine example of the American Foursquare articulated
with decorative elements from the Queen Anne, Craftsman and Eastlake styles and is the oldest
extant residence designed by Swartz; and

WHEREAS, the property maintains integrity of location, design, setting, materials,
workmanship, feeling and association to its period of significance of 1903; and

WHEREAS, the residence was built for George and Adelphia Rowell who were prominent in
focal cultural affairs and members of a Fresno pioneer family; and

WHEREAS, the property was previously included in the 1994 Ratkovich Plan survey and
found eligible to the Local Register of Historic Resources; and

WHIERAS, the George and Adelphia Rowell Home was evaluated for and found eligible to
the National Register of Historic Places with concurrence by the State Historic Preservation
Officer in a letter dated August §, 2010; and



WHIEREAS the owners of the property, the Fresno Housing Authorities of the City and
County of Fresno, support the designation of the building to Fresno’s Local Official Register of
Historic Resources; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fresno Historic Preservation Commission, at a duly noticed public
hearing held on October 4, 2010, heard testimony on the subject property; and

WHEREAS, based on that testimony, and the presentation of facts relating to the criteria for
official designation, as set forth in the Fresno Municipal Code, Chapter 12, Article 16, made the
following findings;

That the George and Adelphia Rowell Home meets the criteria set out in Article 16,
Chapter 12, Section 12-1607 (a) of the Fresno Municipal Code; and is eligible for
listing on Fresno's Local Register of Historic Resources; and be recommended to
the Fresno City Council for adoption as a Local Resource; and whereas in
accordance with Fresno Municipal Code, Article 16 Section 12-1601 et seq. this
hearing has been duly noticed for Council action upon the designation
recommended by the Commission; and

WHERIAS, on October 28, 2010, Council held a hearing where it considered the
recomimendation of the Historic Preservation Cominission, and considered substantial evidence,
including but not limited to, staff presentation, a report prepared by staff addressing the
property’s eligibility to the Local Register, a Primary Record (“PR”) and a Building, Structure
and Object Record (“BSOR™) prepared by the City’s Historic Preservation Specialist (as defined
in FMC § 12-1604(b)) finding that the property met the Historic Resource eligibility
requirements for criteria i, ii and iii to subdivision 12-1607(a)(1).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Fresno:

1. Council finds that the above recitals are true and correct.

2. Council finds that the George and Adelphia Rowell Home is eligible for listing
under criteria i, ii and iii of Fresno Municipal Code, subdivision 12-1607(a)(1)

based upon the evidence presented to Council in the staff presentation, staff
report, the PR and the BSOR.

3. Council designates the George and Adelphia Rowell Home as a Historic Resource
to the Local Register of Historic Resources.
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA — THE RESQURCES AGENCY ARNOLD SCHWARZENEGGER, Governor

OFFICE OF HISTORIC PRESERVATION

DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION
1725 23" Street, Suite 100

SACRAMENTO, CA 95816-7100

{3167 4457000 Fax: (916) 445.7063

calshpo@parks.ca.gov

wiw.ohp. parks.ca.gov

August 5, 2010

REPLY TO: HUD100802D

Karana Hattersley-Drayton

Historic Preservation Project Manager

City of Fresno

Development and Resource Management Department
2600 Fresno Street

Fresno, CA 93721-3604

Dear Ms. Mattersley-Drayton:
RE: DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY, 153 N. EFFIE STREET, FRESNO

Thank you for forwarding a determination of eligibility pursuant to the terms of the City
of Fresno’s programmatic agreement for HUD-assisted undertakings.

We have reviewed your submittal and concur in your determination that the residentiai
property located at 153 N, Effie Street is eligible for inclusion in the National Register of
Historic Places under criteria A and C at the local level of significance. The 1903
residence was built for George and Adelphia Rowell, Gorge was a prominent Fresno
sheep rancher, vineyardist and merchant. Adelphia continued to live in the house until
her death in 1932. The house, an American Colonial Revival Foursquare, was
designed by Alexander Culbertson Swartz, one of the leading architects in the area.

If you have questions, please do not hesitate to contact Lucinda Woodward,
Supervisor of the Local Government Unit, at (916) 445-7028 or at
Iwoodward@parks.ca.qov.

Sincerely,

Fd"'/{‘:(’;.(./;.«n.#d}r./g"i‘”ﬁ\-u-rfwvv‘-«.f—‘- ?S“’V

Milford Wayne Donaldson, FAIA
State Historic Preservation Officer



State of California— The Resources Agency Primary #
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION HRI #
PRIMARY RECORD Trinomial
NRHP Status Code
Other Listings
Review Code Reviewer Date

P1. Resource Name: United Grocers Warehouse (Western Building Materials Company) (Survey Update)
*P2. Location: *a. County: Fresno
*b. USGS 7.5' Quad: Fresno South, property located in Section 3 T14S R20E
c. Address: 801 R Street, Fresno 93721
d. Assessor’s Parcel Number: 468-162-05

*P3a. Description: The United Grocers Warehouse and Distribution Center building was evaluated in 1994 by John
Edward Powell and Michael McGuire for the Ratkovich Plan Survey (see attached Historic Resources Inventory forms).
The 1931 warehouse was designed by architects Fred L. Swartz and C.J. Ryland and was constructed by Fisher and
McNulty for the San Francisco-based cooperative for a cost of $65,000. The 200’ long masonry structure was
purchased in 2009 by a local development company, Baltara Enterprises LP, and the building is currently being adapted
as an office complex for a federal agency, General Services Agency. As part of this in-progress tenant improvement
the interior has been gutted and is being upgraded for contemporary use using Fresno Green building standards. The
steel sash industrial windows have been removed, in order to meet blast resistance standards under federal guidelines
for Tier I. Some doors and windows have been removed and in-filled, although apparently many of these had been
punched through since the building was constructed in 1931. The exterior will be painted in a brick color, to mask the
many layers of former paint used to cover graffiti. A contrasting band of color will accentuate the building at the cornice
line. The cement loading dock is being re-poured but will include handicap access and tree wells, as required by the
City of Fresno for this right-of-way. A new one-story stucco over frame addition has been constructed on the north end
of the building to accommodate the needs of the federal tenant. This addition does not attempt to “copy” the original
but is in contrast to it and is purposely set back from the principle elevations in order to not detract from the 1931
warehouse. Character defining features of the stepped parapets on both the “north” and “south” elevations of the
warehouse have been retained.

*P3b. Resource Attributes: HP8 (Warehouse) Tenant Improvements to HP6 (Federal office)

“P4. Resources Present: eBuilding

P5b Photo date: September 28,
2010

*P6. Date Constructed/Age
and Sources: 1931, Chicago
Title Deed

*P7. Owner and Address:
Baltara Enterprises LP
2025 N. Gateway #101
Fresno, CA 93727

*P8. Recorded by:

John Edward Powell

(see attached survey forms)
Update, Karana Hattersley-
Drayton, Historic Preservation
Project Manager, City of Fresno

*P9. Date Recorded:
September 28, 2010

*P10. Survey Type: Intensive

*P11. Report Citation: “Evaluation of the Western Building Materials Company for Fresno’s Local Register of
Historic Resources.”
*Attachments: @ Historic Resources Inventory Form from 1994
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Tenant Improvements in Progress, May 2010

“Northeast”
corner of
building
with new
addition,
September
28, 2010
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FRESNO,
CALIFORNIA, DESIGNATING THE UNITED GROCERS, INC.
WAREHOUSE AND DISTRIBUTION CENTER (AKA WESTERN BUILDING
MATERIALS COMPANY) LOCATED AT 801 R STREET, AS A HISTORIC
RESOURCE TO THE LOCAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC RESOURCES

WHEREAS, the United Grocers Warehouse was constructed in 1931 as one of several
buildings along the east side of the Santa Fe Railroad corridor; and

WHEREAS, the building was designed by Swartz and Ryland, a prominent local
architectural firm best known for their design of the Fresno State (now Fresno City) College
library; and

WHEREAS, the 200 foot long masonry building is an important example of vernacular
commercial buildings of the era and contributes to a potential warehouse district; and

WHEREAS, the former warchouse is currently being renovated for use by a federal client;
and

WHEREAS, although this tenant improvement has led to some loss of integrity due to
federal safety requirements, the building still retains its character defining features of the stepped
parapets on the north and south elevation, the overall massing, the masonry construction and the
clerestory and bowstring truss roof; and

WHEREAS, the United Grocers Warehouse retains integrity of location, setting,
workmanship, feeling and association to its period of significance of 1931; and

WHEREAS, the building was previously evaluated and found eligible to the Local Register
of Historic Resources in the 1994 Ratkovich Plan survey; and



WHEREAS, the owners of the property, Baltara Enterprises LP, support the designation of
the building to Fresno’s Local Official Register of Historic Resources; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fresno Historic Preservation Commission, at a duly noticed public
hearing held on October 4, 2010, heard testimony on the subject property; and

WHERIEAS, based on that testimony, and the presentation of facts relating to the criteria for
official designation, as set forth in the Fresno Municipal Code, Chapter 12, Article 16, made the
following findings;

That the United Grocers Inc. Warehouse and Distribution Center (aka Western

Building Materials Company) meets the criteria set out in Article 16, Chapter 12,
Section 12-1607 (a) of the Fresno Municipal Code; and is eligible for listing on
Fresno’s Local Register of Historic Resources; and be recommended to the Fresno
City Council for adoption as a Local Resource; and whereas in accordance with
Fresno Municipal Code, Article 16 Section 12-1601 et seq. this hearing has been
duly noticed for Council action upon the designation recommended by the
Commission; and

WHEREAS, on October 28, 2010, Council held a hearing where it considered the
recommendation of the Historic Preservation Commission, and considered substantial evidence,
including but not limited to, staff presentation, a report prepared by staff addressing the
property’s eligibility to the Local Register, a Primary Record (“PR”) and a Building, Structure
and Object Record (“BSOR™) prepared by the City’s Historic Preservation Specialist (as defined
in FMC § 12-1604(b)) finding that the property met the Historic Resource eligibility
requirements for criteria 1 and iii to subdivision 12-1607(a)(1).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Fresno:

1.

2.

Council finds that the above recitals are true and correct.

Council finds that the United Grocers, Inc. Warehouse and Distribution Center is
eligible for listing under criteria i and iii of Fresno Municipal Code, subdivision
[2-1607(a)(1) based upon the evidence presented to Council in the staff
presentation, staff report, the PR and the BSOR,

Council designates the United Grocers, Inc. Warchouse and Distribution Center as
a Historic Resource to the Local Register of Historic Resources.
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